"1 D-/306

Y "' historic structure report
' historical data
november 1978
i
_ |
-ﬂ .
| |

f_' Color Scans :;;::&T'T*P*I CSNTER 0"' mﬂﬂﬂmm

R JATIORAL PARR SCAV
& / 0-/ 9 / 1602

NATIONAL LAKESHORE / MICHIGAN




HISTORIC STRUCTURE REPORT
HISTORICAL DATA
AU SABLE LIGHT STATION
PICTURED ROCKS NATIONAL LAKESHORE

MICHIGAN

Prepared by
Louis Torres

e

DENVER SERVICE CENTER
HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
DENVER, COLORADO

November 1978

PO
’




PREFACE

The purpose of this study is to provide the basic historical data neces-
sary for an adaptive restoration of the Au Sable Light Station at Pictured
Rocks National Lakeshore. It has been prepared under Account 2335-399 to
fulfill the requirements of the development/study package proposal (10-238) of
August 27, 1976 and the task directive of March 1977.

As both the footnotes and bibliography indicate, the bulk of all basic
historical data for this study has come largely from the National Archives and
Records Service and Pictured Rocks National Lakeshore. The writer was

fortunate to have found a very complete file of historical records at the park.

The writer wishes to take this opportunity to express his appreciation to
several individuals far their contributions to this report. At the park,
Superintendent Robert L. Burns, Bruce A. Peterson, and Bernie Gestel were
very helpful. As in the past with projects in which this writer was involved,
Bruce Peterson has demonstrated a high regard for the historical properties
of the park. William Sherman of the National Archives and Records Service
was helpful in tracing historic documents associated with the lighthouse. The
author also owes a debt of gratitude to Dennis L. Noble of the United States
Coast Guard, both for his preliminary work in this area and for making
copies of materials and other information quickly available.

A special word of gratitude must go to Francis Ross Holland, Jr., Chief,

Cultural . Resources Management Division, the historian of American light-

houses, for his critical review of the draft and for his many helpful

suggestions.

Finally, this writer must acknowledge the contributions of Helen Athearn
and Lou Layman of the Denver Service Center, the first for typing and
assembling the manuscript, the second for her usual display of great skill in

editing the final manuscript.
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t. INTRODUCTION

A. Need For A Lighthouse

With the growth of industry in the Upper Peninsula of Michigan, com-
merce increased on Lake Superior. The growing number of vessels of large
and small tonnage plowing these waters found it extrerﬁely dangerous and
difficult to maneuver safely without adequate navigational aids. The irregular
shoreline of the Upper Peninsula was lined with numerous islands, straits,
and reefs, as are most parts of the Great Lakes. Frequently the compass
couid not be relied Upon as in the open sea because the proximity of masses
of iron ore, particular‘ly. on Lake Superior, varied considerably according to
the quantity of ore deposits in the vicinity. Frequent storms and heavy fogs
common to these waters also added to the risks of a ship's captain. Thé
remains of shipwrecks along the shores of Lake Superior, no less than those
along the present shoreline of Pictured Rocks Nationél Lakeshoré,' are
startling reminders of the dangers lurking in these waters. Navigational aids

were a vital necessity if ships were to be warned of an impending disaster.

By the end of 1865, Lake Superior had a total of 14 lighthouses in opera-
tion.‘l Lighthouses existed .'at both Whitefish Point and Grand Islaﬁd Harbor
on Lake Superior. Between these two points--a distance of 80 miles--there
were no other lighthouses. The absence of a lighthouse within such a wide
area was looked upon with some alarm by the Eleventh Lighthouse District, in

whose jurisdiction this area fell. In its annual report of 1867 to the United

States Lighthouse Board, the district noted that vessels usually followed the

. T. Michael O'Brien, U.S.C.G., Guardians of the Eighth Sea: A

- History of the U.S. Coast Guard on the Great Lakes (Washington, D.C.:

U.S. Government Printing Office, 1976), p. I8, citing List of Lighthouses and

'Liﬂg_hted Beacons of the Coasts of the Northern and Northwestern Lakes of the

United. States, compiled by the Secretaries of the Lighthouse Board, January
I, 1966. |




south shore of Lake Superior, hugging the coastline, and that navigation was
seriously hampered without the aid of a lighthouse. The district strongly
recommended that a lighthouse be established; exact location would have to .

await further study, however.

The recommendation made by the Eleventh Ligh-thouse District seemed to
fall on deaf ears even though the district was convinced that the lighthouse
was "more needed than-any eother Light in the. district not already provided

for."3

Although the district continued to make an, annual appeal for the
constructicdn of a Iig.hthouse, it was not until 1872 thaf Congress finally felt
obligated to appropriate $40,000 for that purpose. Ironically, while Congress
had finally -consented to appropriate the money, the lighthouse boérd had yet

to select a site.

The reservation that was finally selected--325.93 acres--turned out to be
land that had once been patented by the United States to the state of

Michigan in 1856. It was then called "swamp land." On September 6, 1872,

this land Was returned to the United States for the sum of $407.4I.5 The

2. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1867," clipping file, |
Record Group 26, National Archives and Records Service (hereafter referred.
to as RG 26, NA). |

3. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1871," clipping file,
RG 26, NA. | |

4. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1872," clipping file,
RG 26, NA. - |

5. Map, "Big Sable Light Station, Mich., Reservation Surveyed Aug.
I1-13, 1884, by Geo. Y. Wisner," site file, RG 26, NA (Appendix 1). Oid site
records formerly in the possession of the U.S. Coast Guard give the date of
conveyance as September 1, 1872. See title paper, "Michigan #2," RG 26,
NA, copy provided by Dennis L. Noble, USCG; George Boutwell, Sec. of
ETreas.., to Prof. Joseph Henry, Chairman of Lighthouse Board, October 1872;
Chas. A. Edmonds, Commissioner of State Land Office, Mich. to Dept. of
Treas., October 4, 1872; deed of conveyance recorded in Book 4|, p. 563,
September 6, 1872, site file, RG 26, NA. |




reservation was described as encompassing lLots | and 2 in Section |, Lots I,
» 3, and 4 in Section 2, and Lots | and 2 in Section 3, Township 49 North,

Range 15 West.6 It was located on the south shore of Lake Superior, about

N
W

=

halfway between the City of Marquette on the west and Whitefish Point on the
east. Grand Marais, a small community and the nearest town, was about {2
miles from where the lighthouse was actually constructed. The geographic
point where the lighthouse was built was known as Point Au Sable, and the
name Big Sa‘ble was assigned to the new lighthouse station. The reservation
itself was é densely wooded area consisting of cedar, fir, and birch trees,

and much of the land consisted of wasteland of sand dunes and marshes.

B. Construction of Lighthouse and Related Facilities

In July 1873, construction on the lighthouse and related facilities began.
The superstructure of the tower was completed about one year later, and by
August 1874 the lens was set in place. On August 19, 1874, the lamp was
lighted for the first time.8

While specific evidence is lacking, it is very likely that other facilities
were also built at this time. Certainly the dwelling ‘that would house the
keeper of the lighthouse and later his assistant had to have been constructed
at this time. A privy was probably constructed, also. A woodshed and
boathouse, if not built in 1874, may have been built soon after. A site map
drawn .in 1884, after a survey of the reservation had been. undertaken,

depicts the exact position of the lighthouse, an attached dwelling, three very

6. Map, "Sketch of Light-House Site of Big Sable Mich.," Engineer,
Eleventh Lighthouse District, Detroit, Mich., February 10, 1902, site file,
RG 26, NA (Appendix A-2).

7. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1873," clipping file,
RG 26, NA.

8. Eleventh Light'house District, "Annual Report, 1874," clipping file,
RG 26, NA. |




small structures (not designated), and a boathouse with a dock near'by.9 An
excellent photograph taken in 1884 also depicts the lighthouse with the
attached dwelling, a brick privy, a woodshed, and what was probably the
boathouse (lllustration I).10 Another photograph taken in 189 from a point
- on the lake shows almocst the same number of structures, but because it was
taken at a distance the small privy is hidden among the shrubbery
(tHlustration 2).11 These two photographs support one another and, in turn,
both offer supporting evidence to the (884 survey map. The 1884 photograph
shows ladders placed against a wooden structure or shed, which may indicate
either that this shed was just in the process of being completed at the time
or that it was being repaired. The former assumption is more likely to be

correct.

In later years, other structures were added and alterations were made to
older structures. Chief among the additions were the fog signal house in 1897
and a second dwelling in 1909. A brick oil house was built in 1895; a second
brick privy to complement thé new dwelling was put up in 1909. A second
wooden shed was also constructed after 1909. In 1915 a metal oil house was
added to the station. Finally, a garage was constructed in 1954. Although it
is known that a hennery existed at least as early as |909, it is not known

when this structure came into existence..

At differ_eni: intervals the smaller structures were moved to more con-
venient locations, and new structures may have replaced the old ones. For
example, the locations of the old brick privy and shed were changed from

their easterly position to a more southeriy position. In recent years, during

9. Map, "Big Sable Light Station, Mich., surveyed August (I-13, 1884,
by Geo. Y. Wisner," site file, RG 26, NA.

0.  Photograph No. 26-LG-49-5, 1884, RG 26, NA; a similar photograph
is numbered 26-1L.G-49-7, 1884, RG 26, NA.

Il.  Photograph No. 26-LG-49-10, 1891, RG 26, NA.
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the United States Coast Guard's Lustodlanshlp, some of the buildings--the two
wooden sheds and the hennery--have disappeared from the lighthouse

complex. Nevertheless, all the structures that exist today, except the

garage, represent old structures central to the operation of the lighthouse

i complex at Au Sabie. Therefore they are worthy of preservation.
. - An interesti'ng site map drawn to scale in 1909, at the time the new
dwellihg was added, depicts all structures at the station in relation to one

another. This map shows an enlarged dwelling attached to the lighthouse, as
. well as a second dwelling (1909) to the west of the tower. Immediately to the
south of the enlarged dwelling, reached by a narrow, straight walk, were a
. shed, a privy, and . a brick oil house. The map also shows in this same area
a metal oil house that was added in 1915, which, by the way, indicates that

l this map was revised in later years.

. ‘The second dwelling appears on this map, which indicates that it was
just then constructed or in the process of being constructed. To the south
of this new structure, reached by a narrow walk, appear two squares, one

l smaller than the other. Although these have no designation, they
13

undoubtedly symbolize a new or second privy and a second shed.

South of the square, or brick, oil house, and haifway between this
. structure and the new privy, was the hennery, a structure about the same

size as the two sheds. This was reached from the brick oil house by a

Map, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan. Surveyed June 9, 1909 By
Ralph R Tinkham," site file, RG 26, NA (Appendix A-3). A similar map
with revisions made in 1935 and 1944, drawing 12088-S, is in park files.

l
°

13. Ibid.
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narrow and irregular dirt path.14 The hennery, like the two sheds, has long

since _disappeared.

Other changes made over the years, some before 1909 and others after,
were the replacement of wooden walks with concrete walks, a considerabie
number of alterations to the dock, and the construction of a retaining wall

designed to hold the loose sandy soil surrounding the fog signal house.

C. A Change of Name

In May 1910 the name of the light station, Big Sable, was changed to Au
Sable to conform to changes in names of certain lighthouse stations in the
Great Lakes Region. The geographic name of Point Au Sable was changed to
Au Sable, and the light station also assumed this name.fI

a

D. The Station in Recent Years

The location of the Au Sable light station was isolated. The log books
kept by the keepers and assistant keepers testify to this isolation; they are
replete with entries that reveal the lonely life of those who carried on their
daily duties. The station was about |2 miles from Grand Marais, where the
keepers received their mail and bought many of their supplies. The road to
Grand Marais was a torturous path over sand dunes and through densely
wooded areas frequently rendered impassable by heavy snows and washouts.
When either the keeper or his assistant went to Grand Marais for supplies and
mail, he was gone for at least two days, leaving only one person to man the

lighthouse. In later vyears, when the need for formal education arose,

[4:  Ibid.
. 15. Naval Secretary, Lighthouse Board, to Sec. of Commerce and Labor,
April 30, 1910; Dept. of Commerce and Labor to Lighthouse Board, May 3,
1910, correspondence file, RG 26, NA.




children of the keeper and his assistants had to be transported long distances
fo schools at a heavy expense to the family. {in the 1950s, long after the
United States Coast Guard had assumed jurisdiction over lighthouses, the
Coast Guard determined that the type of navigational aid offered at Au Sable
was no longer considered essential. It decided to convert the lighthouse to
an unmanned operation consisting of an automatic light of lesser intensity.
The Coast Guard also decided to discontinue the fog signal altogether. The

unmanned operation went into effect in I958.16

Au Sable Light Station, except for the lighthouse itself, was transferred
to the National Park Service on January 12, 1968, to become a part of Pictured
Rocks National Lakeshore. The United States Coast Guard continued to

operate the lighthouse as an unmanned facility.17

E. Statement of Historical Significance

Much of the Upper Peninsula of Michigan was a wilderness in the

nineteenth century. With the ever-growing lumber and iron industries in the

area, commerce and navigation increased rapidly and the peninsula prospered.

Shipwrecks along the southern shore of Lake Superior and what is now the
coastline of Pictured Rocks National Lakeshore became frequent occurrences.
The establishment of Au Sable (formerly Big Sable) Light Station provided a
much-needed navigational aid in an area stretching more than 80 miles
between Whitefish Point and Grand Island. The light station, like other

navigational aids in the area, helped to further the goals of industry and

I6. Commander, Ninth Coast Guard District, to Commander, Coast Guard
Group, Marquette, Michigan, - June 25, 1957; Commander, Ninth Coast Guard
District to Office in Charge, Au Sabie Light Station, January 14, {958.
Copies made available by Dennis L. Noble, MSTC, USCG.

7. Title papers, reference, .Michigan #2, RG 26, NA. Copy made avail-
able by Dennis L. Noble, MSTC, USCG.



commerce of the Great Lakes Region. The park is fortunate to have among
its cultural resources a complex of structures so complete and well preserved
as to make it incumbent upon the National Park Service to continue the
preservation of the light station in order to tell the story of its role in this

significant phase of American history.

10




1. THE LIGHTHOUSE AND ITS SUPPORTING ELEMENTS

A. LLghthouse

The lighthouse was constructed on sandy soil of varying depths above a

sandstone bedrock and about 200 feet from the nearest high-water mark.

The tower, including its lantern, rose 107 feet above water level, but the

tower itself was 86 feet high measured from its base to the ventilator ball of

‘-

the lantern. The tower was conical in shape and consisted of brick on a cut
stone base that rose 3 feet 4 inches above the grade. The sills and lintels

also consisted of cut stone. At the base the walls were 4 feef 3 inches thick;

the outer wall was 20 inches thick, the inner wall, 12 inches thick, with an

air space of 19 inches between the inner and outer walls. The foundation

consisted of rubble masonry 23 feet below the surface, on bedrock.

The walls at the parapet were 3 feet 4 inches thick with a I6-inch thick
outer wall, an 8-inch thick inner wall, and an air space of 16 inches between

the two walls. The diameter at the base was |6 feet 6 inches, and at the

L-

parapet it was |12 feet 8 inches.

The tower was painted white and the lantern, black. There are

innumerable references in the keeper's log book to the frequent whitewashing

of the towe'r'..2 The interior of the tower was plastered.

|. Unless otherwise noted, the description and dimensions of the light-
house and its supporting elements appearing in this chapter are derived from
"Description of Buildings, Premises, Equipment, Etc. at Au Sable Light
Station, Michigan, June 7, 1909," RG 26, NA (Appendix B).

}

2. Keeper's log book, 1893-1903, here and there, RG 26, NA.

- 3. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1874,6" clipping file,
RG 26, NA.

11
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The tower's stairway was circular, windinhg, and made of cast iron of a
perforated pattern. Although it is not known whether a pipe handrail was
originally installed in the tower; nevertheless, one did exist by 1909. There
were three iron landings; one was 5/8 inch thick and two were 1/2 inch thick.
The stair landing below the lantern floor served as, and sometimes was
called, the watchroom. The landing had four semicircular windows around it.
Today one of thesé windows has been blocked off. A reference in the
kéeper's log book for June 22, 1897, notes that bricklayers were putting brick
~in the tower, and this writer suspects that it may have been then that one
window  was blocked off from the in_s;id(-:-.4 The landing was also fitted with a

closet of shelves set in the wall for lamp supplies.

in all, there were seven windows in the tower, the four semicircular
windows on the top landing and just below the parapet, one each on the other

two landings, and one on the ground level.

The tower was connected to a dwelling, or what was then known as the
keeper's dwelling, by a covered passageway 12-1/2 feet long by 5 feet wide.

It had an outer door facing south and a window on the north side.

The lantern room, which held the lens apparatus, consisted of a copper
dome lined with zinc, held together with pinched strips of welded iron. The
ventilator ball also consisted of copper. The lightning conductor spindle was
made of copper with a platinum 'tip. The lightning conductor was attached to
its spindle by a 3/4-inch gas pipe that led from the gallery deck down the
northwest side of the tower into the dry ground. A twisted copper rope also

led from the stairs through the wall at the floor level of the tower and into

the dry ground.

The lower gallery that circled the tower was made of cast iron, and it

was 35-1/2 inches wide. A handrail that encircled the gallery was 40 inches

.4. Keeper's log book, June 22, 1897, RG 26, NA.

12
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high and consisted of two flat bar rails measuring 3/4 inch by 2 inches. The
stanchions that supported the rail were }-1/2 inches in diameter with ball

tops.

The floor of the lantern was made of cast iron and it was cut out for a
stairwell. The lantern (or upper) gallery, which was at lens level, was also
made of cast iron, and it extended outside to form a circular gallery 20-1/2
inches wide. The handrail encircling this gallery was |-1/2 inches by 2

inches and flat. It was supported by I-inch wide stanchions.
The open stairwell led to the upper part of the lantern. A trap door of
iron plate was in the floor of the lower part of the {antern. The inside

diameter of the lower part of the lantern was 7 feet 1l-1/2 inches.5

In the lower part of the lantern there were five ventilators with brass

_ lring valve registers inside and cast-iron hoods outside.

- - -\

‘. .
i

The illuminating apparatus installed in the lantern in 1874 was a coast
fixed lens of the third order. There were seven orders of lenses placed in
lighthouses running from one to six. (One was a three-and-a-half-order
lens.) The lower the number, the greater the size of the lens. Thus, the
third order represented a fairly large lens. The lens was the Fresnel
apparatus, a French-type lens frequently found in lighthouses after 1852.
This fixed apparatus consisted of a central powerful lamp emitting luminous
beams in every direction. Around this was placed an arrangement of glass so

formed as to refract these beams into parallel rays in the required direction.

| 5. For further technical information on specifications and details of the
la.ntern, see "Description of Buildings, Premises, Equipment, Etc. at Au Sable
Light Station, Michigan, June 7, 1909," pp. 5-6, RG 26, NA, (Appendix B).

13



A third order light was 3 feet 3-3/8 inches in diameter',.6 The lens at Big
Sable was manufactured by L. 'Sauter and Company of Paris. As parts of a
fixed lens, each of the four panels had a 72-degree arc. There was one dark
panel in the lens, the central belt of which was closed by a curved brass

door to protect the iamp. -

The pedestal of the lens consisted of cast iron resting over a newel on
" the floor of the lower part of the lantern. The base of the lens had a cast-
iron floor that served as a service table. Upon it stood a lamp pedestal of a

ring and three stanchions.

Originally the lighthouse burned lard oil, but this was later changed to

kerosene, (originally referred to as mineral oil), a more effective fuel.7

A public hearing was held by the Ninth Coast Guard District in July 1957
to outline United States Coast Guard plans to reduce the candlepower and
alter the characteristics of the light and to convert the lighthouse to an
unmanned operation. By January 1958 the United States Coast Guard had
approved the conversion of the lighthouse to an automatic, unattended light,
while also discontinuing the fog signal house. A deadline of June 1958 was

established for the change.®

6. Francis Ross Holland, Jr., America's Lighthouses: Their Illustrated
History Service 1716 (Brattleboro, Vermont: The Stephen Greene Press,
1972), p. 18; [J. H. Beers & Co.]}, History of the Great Lakes (Chicago: J.

H. Beers & Co., 1899, Reprinted, Cleveland: Freshwater Press inc., 1972),
I, p. 369.

7. Dennis L.'Noble and T. Michael O'Brien, "Sentinels of the Rocks:

From I'Gr'aveyar'd Coast' to National Lakeshore," 1976, manuscript in park
files, p. 32.

8. Memorandum, Commander, 9th Coast Guard District- to Commander,
Coast Guard Group, Marquette, Michigan, subject: "Au Sable Light; public
hearing for," June 25, 1957; memorandum, Commander, 9th Coast Guard
District to Officer in Charge, Au Sable Light Station, subject: "Au Sable
Light; ‘disestablishment of," January 14, [958; "Aids to Navigation Operation
Request (CG 3213), 9th CG District, Project No. 10-58, August |, 1957, filed

in 9th Coast Guard District, Cleveland, Ohio, copies supplied by Dennis L.
Noble, USCG.

14
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The third order lens was finally removed from the lantern in I9?2 and
replaced by a much smaller 300 mm acrylic Iens.9 This lens was fastened to
the upper gallery of the tower. Meanwhile, the oid lantern was boarded up
to preserve it from the weather and the old lens was transferred to the
National Park Se!r-vice, where it is now exhiBited in the headquarters of

Pictured Rpcké National Lakeshore (see l|llustration 3).
l{lustrations ‘4 through 10 show the lighthouse as it is today.

B. Fog Signal House

Fog signals were used extensively in the late nineteenth century to
support lighthouses, since sound could penetrate a dense fog or blinding
snowstorm when a light could not. The principal fog signals were trumpets,
steam whistles, automatic whistling buoys, bell buoys, bell boats and sirens,
and bells run by machinery impelled by clockwork. The steam whistle was
next to the siren in effectiveness and popularity, and was largely used with

satisfactory results where a great intensity of sound was not essential.10

With navigation on Lake Superior growing constantly, navigational aids
also were increased in number and effectiveness. The entire ship traffic of
Marquette, Michigan, which was estimated at 1,772,400 tons in 1890, hugged

the south shore of Lake Superior.

. 9. Memorandum, Chief, Aids to Navigation Branch, 9th Coast Guard
District, to Public Information Officer, 9th Coast Guard District, subject:

'Au Sable Light, request for information concerning," May 23, 1972, in park
files.

0. History of the Great Lakes, |, pp. 369-370.
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Hustration 3
Third Order Lens on Exhibit at Headquarters of
Pictured Rocks National Lakeshore
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Mustratiarn 4 Hiustration 3
Lighthouse Tower Looking East Lighthause Tower Looking Morthwest
1977 1977
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[Hustration B Nustration 7
Doar to Balcony on Lighthouse Tower Vantlilator Heod ofl Halcony
1877 1977



Hlustration 8
Lantern Section and 1972 Automatic Light on Lighthouse Tower
1977
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[llustration 9
Section of Balcony on Lighthouse Tower
1977



Hlustration 10
wWindow on Third Landing of Lighthouse Tower
1977
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Marquette was an important center of the iron industry. The Eleventh
Lighthouse District was convinced that a steam fog signal was essential to
complete the facilities at Big Sable. It felt that the fog signal could be
established at a cost of $5,500, and in 1892 it recommended that such an
amount be appropriated. Although Congress approved the construction of a
fog signal at Big Sable in 1893, it was not until June 1896 that the

appropriation was finally passed.‘l‘l
Plans and specifications called for the establishment of a 10-inch steam

the steam whistle wduld emit blasts of 3 seconds' duration with intervals of |7

seconds! duration. 12

i

' signal with duplicate fog signal boilers and machinery. When in operation,
| - . . 13

' On September |, 1897, the fog signal was placed into operation. Soon

after,  other accessories needed to operate the fog signal were aiso

constructed. A crib filled with ballast was buiit and sunk into position on
.he .dock, and a well box was placed in it for fog signal water supply.14 The
water, which was supplied from the lake, was transmitted from the well to the
' fog signal house by a 202-foot-long, !-inch-wide steam pipe and a 202-foot-
long, I%-inch-wide discharge pipe. In 1898 a hoisting engine was installed on
' the dock, and a tramway, running from the dock to the fog signal house, was

put in place. The track was 55 feet long, and about midway on the track a

' 1. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Reports" for 1892, 1893, 1894,

1895, and 1896, clipping file, RG 26, NA.

12. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1896," clipping file,

' RG 26, NA; Naval Secretary, Lighthouse Board, to Eleventh Lighthouse
District, letters of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, RG 26, NA.

' ‘ 13. Engineer Secretary, Lighthouse Board, to Eleventh Lighthouse
District, August 18, 1897, letters of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, RG 26,
NA.

' 14:  Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Arinui! Report, 1897," clipping file,
RG 26, NA.
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turntable was ins‘talled.‘|5 In 1905 a brick cistern for fog signal water supply

was constructed just to the east of the fog signal house.1

The building hdusing the fog signal equipment was a one-story red brick

Q)

structure with red metal shingle roof. Iits dimensions were 22 feet by 40
feet. Otriginally the roof had two long metal smokestacks, but in 1904 these
were removed and replaced by a 40-foot brick chimney."7 A photograph
taken in 1904, just before the brick chimney was added, provides an excellent
description of this building only seven vyears after it was completed

(lllustration II)."8

The two main elements in the structure itself were the boiler and steam
engine. The dimensions of the boiler were 7 feet 5 inches high, 6 feet 6-3/4
inches long, and 4 feet 9-3/4 inches wide. The fuel it burned was
bituminous coal. The steam engine was a vertical type completing 120

revolutions per minute.

In 1928 the fog signal house was converted to new equipment. At that

time the steam whistle equipment was replaced by an air diaphone fog signal.

5. Keeper's log book, Nov. 30, 1893, RG 26, NA; Eleventh Lighthouse
District, "“Annual Report, 1899," clipping file, RG 26, NA; Engineer
Secretary, Lighthouse Board, to Eleventh Lighthouse District, October |,
1897, letters of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, RG 26, NA.

6. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1905," clipping file,
RG 26, NA. |

7. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1904," clipping file,
RG 26, NA.

8. Photograph 26-LG-49-6A, 1904, RG 26, NA. See also lllustration 12,
photograph taken in 1920, showing the brick chimney.

9. Map, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan, Surveyed June 9, 1909, By
Ralph R. Tinkham," RG 26, NA.
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Mustration 11
Fog Sngnal House
Big Sahle [Au Sable) Light Station, 15904
[ Phologragh Ma. 26-LG-49-bA, Becord Group 26, Nalional Archives)



lllustration 12
Fog Signal House with Brick Chimney
June 1920
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This equipment consisted of a water pump, air compressor, and air hoist.
The changes made at this time altered the roof to some extent in order to fit
in the new equipment (lHustration I3).21 In later years the size of the

chimney was reduced to its present dimensions (lliustrations (4, 5, and [6).

With the conversion of the lighthouse to an automatic light in 1958, the
fog signal operation was discontinued. Nearly all equipment and machinery
were removed from the fog signal house, and today the interior of the
structure has been gutted of everything except the air receiver tank and the

fuel tank.22

During National Park Service custodianship the metal roof was removed

and replaced by asbestos shingles. The metal shingles have been stored for

future use.

C. Boathouse and Wharf

The earliest evidence of the existence of a boathouse at Au Sable Light
Station is a detailed blueprint of 1884, which alludes to a "Boat-House." The
distance of the boathouse to the lighthouse portrayed in this drawing is

probably the same as it is today.23 An 1891 photograph viewing the light-

20. Questionnaire, "Au Sable Light Station," June 22, 1935, copy made
available by Dennis L. Noble, USCG; drawing "Au Sable Light Station, Mich.
Air Diaphone Fog Signal Installation, 8-25-28," Office of Superintendent of
Lighthouses, Eleventh Lighthouse District, Detroit, Mich., Drawing No.
1111-2S, in park files.

21. Photograph taken in the 1950s, in park files.

22. Commander, Ninth Coast Guard District, to Officer in Charge, Au
Sable Light Station, Michigan, subject: "Au Sable Light; disestablishment
of," January 14, 1958, copy supplied by Dennis L. Noble, USCG. -

23. Map, "Big Sable Light Station, Mich., reservation surveyed August
11-13, 1884, by Geo. Y. Wisner," RG 26, NA.
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[llustration 13
Fog Signal House
Photograph shows change in roof
after new equipment was Installed.
Park Files--1950s
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IHustration 14
Fog Signal House Looking Southwest
1977

Hlustration 15
Fog Signal House Locking East
1977
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IHlustration 16

Fog Signal House Looking MNortheast
1977

28




l.

house station from the lake shows a white structure that is probably the
boathouse shown in the blueprint (lllustration 2).24 An entry in the keeper's
log book in 1903 notes that the boathouse was being whitewashed; hence, the

color of the boathouse in the early years was white.

Some evidence indicates that the boathouse may not have always been
where it is now. For example, an entry in the keeper's log book for July 18,
1901, reveals that a crew of men were busy "moving Boat house" while doing
extensive work on the dock.26 There is no evidence, however, to show

where the boathouse actually was before it was relocated.

In 1909 the boathouse was described as consisting of a wood frame with
battened vertical sideboards. Rather than being white, as it is today, it was
painted an olive green. It also had a red shingle roof, but it was probably
not of metal, as were some of the roofs of other structures. The existing
boathouse is also constructed of batten board, and it is a one-story, one-
room structure. The walls are painted white. The floor is of sand, half
covered with boards. It has two doorways--the one facing the lake is a
double doorway and the one on the land side is a single doorway. The
buitlding contains two small square windows, one on the north side, the other
on the west side (lllustrations 17 and 18). A photograph made in 1938 shows

that the structure existing then is undoubtedly the same as the present one
(1Hlustration ‘19).27

Because of the heavy seas and the frequent hurricanes that occurred,

the dock was repaired and altered on several occasions during its lifetime.

24. Photograph No. 26-LG-49-10, 1884, RG 26, NA.
25. Keeper's log book, June 18, 1903, RG 26, NA.
26. Keeper's log book, July 18, 1901, RG 26, NA.

27. Photograph, June 21, 1938, in park files.
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{flustration 17
Boathouse
Photograph shows side toward lake and

ruins of boatway.
1977

Iustration 18
Boathouse
Pholograph shows land side.
1977
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Ilustration 19
Boathouse at extreme lefl is shown
at a distance from lake.

Park Files--June 21, 1938
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In 1909 the pier was described as measuring 99 feet by 19 feet. It had an
ell shape at the end that measured 14 feet by 38-1/2 feet. It consisted of log
cribs filled with stone. Much of what existed in 308 was probably due to
alterations made in 1906. The annual report of the Eleventh Lighthouse Dis-

trict for 1906 described the changes as follows:

The boat landing and fog-signal water-supply pier was extended |6
feet, and an additional crib, {4 by 32 feet in plan, provided with a
wave break, was placed at the outer end, projecting to the east-
ward and forming an ell with the present pier and a protection to

the boatway. 28

A crib breakwater was built on the west side of the landing at the outer
end. A log bulkhead continued along the remainder of the west side to the
shore. The dock was made of planks that measured 3 by 10 inches and were

4 feet above water.

D. Oil Houses

Before 1895 oil and other inflammable materials were stored in the
keeper's dwelling. An early plan, probably done at the time the dwelling was
constructed (1874), places this area in the southwest room of the first
stor‘y.29 In 1894, after having rescinded an earlier order, the lighthouse

board directed that an oil house be erected at Big Sable, the cost of which

28. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1806," clipping file,
RG 26, NA.

29. "Plan of Dwelling," ca. 1874, in park files.
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was not to exceed $500‘.30 The following year "a brick oil house with metal

roof, door, and shelving" was built.31

in 1909 the flocation of the brick oil house was said to be about 50 feet
south of the keeper's dwelling. This is approximately where the oil house
stands today. The interior was fitted with wood shelving. The inside dimen-
sions were described as being 5 feet 4 inches by 7 feet 2 inches. It had a
concrete flocor and a hip roof. It also had a steel plate door and a globe
ventilator. The structure was designed to hold a capacity of 72 five-gallon

cans (ItHlustrations 20 and 21).

References to whitewashing the oil house in the keepers' log book may
have applied to the interior of the structure, most likely to the wooden

shelving.

A second oil house was built in 915 just opposite a wooden shed that is
no longer in existence. This oil house, which is still in existence today, was
cylindrical in shape and made entirely of iron. Like the old brick oil house,
this structure was used to store combustible liquids and paints. Steel plates
were riveted, the roof was conical in shape, and the structure rested on a
concrete slab. In later yeatrs, when is not exactly known, this oil house was
moved to where it now stands, opposite the privy (lllustration 22).33 In
many respects this oil house resembles the one that stands at Sand Point,

headquarters of Pictured Rocks National Lakeshore (illustration 23).

30. Engineer Secretary, Lighthouse Board, to Eleventh Lighthouse
District, December 14, 1894, Letters of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, RG
26, NA.

31. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1895," clipping file,
RG 26, NA. Two men completed the structure between May 4 and May 22,
1885. See keeper's log book, May 4 and May 22, 1895, RG 26, NA.

32. Keeper's log book, June |0, 1897, RG 26, NA.

33. Map, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA;
drawing, "Plot Plan," n.d. but drawn around (954, in park files.
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Miustration 27

[Nustration 20
Brick Ol Houss--Hear

Brick 11 House--Front
L 1977
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[Hustration 23 Hustration 22
hietal Qi House at Sand Point felal Ol HMowuse
1977 1877



E. Walks, Boatways, Tramway, Turntable, Cistern

Between 1897 and 1910 considerable minor construction work of one type
or another was accomplished at the station. The few buildings that existed
before that time required few walks, but as more structures began to rise,
more walks were needed to communicate between facilities. In 1898 the keeper
and his assistant built a walk from the dwelling house to the docl—<.34 A
27-foot walk was built in 1901 around the outside of the "kitchen," presumably
to facilitate communication between the dwelling, outbuildings, and light-
house.35 A 1909 description of facilities at the station revealed that all walks
may have consisted solely of wooden planks. These walks connected the

dwelling to the outbuildings, boathouse, fog signal house, and dock.

It was probably soon after this description was given that practically all
walks were converted to concrete. A drawing of the entire station, showing
all facilities either as they existed or as they were being planned, revealed
that most of the walks were intended to be of concrete. .Some were to be
2-1/2 feet wide while others were to be I8 inches wide. The only exception
was a wooden walk connecting the fog signal house to the boathouse.36 The
concrete walks were apparently constructed about the same time thaf the new
keeper's dwelling and other structures were built. In later years even the

one wooden walk was converted to concr‘ete37 (1Hlustration 24).

34. Keeper's log book, May I6, 1898, RG 26, NA.
35. Keeper's log book, September 23, 190f, RG 26, NA.
36. Map, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA.

37. Drawing No. 12088-S, n.d., in park files, a revision of drawing,
"Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan,” June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA.

36




IHustration 24
Section of Concrete Walk Leading from
Fog Signal House to Dwellings and Tower
1977
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in 180 iwo roller boatways with an iron winch were constructed from the
boathouse to the edge of the lake, parallel to the dock.38 A tramway was
also built in 1898-99 and improved upon in 190l. A car was to run on the
tramway that would carry supplies landed on the dock to the fog signal
house. The track was about 55 feet long. Midway on the tramway a turn-
table was constructed that turned the car about 45 degrees in the direction of

the fog sighal house.

A brick cistern was buiit in 1904-1905. It held water for the fog signal

house'. It was spherical in shape and measured 10 feet in diameter, and was
located just a few feet east of the fog signal house, where it still stands
today, partially exposed above ground because of soil erosion40 (lustration
25).

F. Retaining Wall

The fog signal house was built on high ground that consisted largely of
sand. To prevent this sand bank from loosening and falling into the lake,
causing irreparable damage to the fog signal house, a sea wall about 68 feet
long and 4-1/2 feet high was built in 1906 along the bank line below the fog
signal house. The wall, which was made of rubblestone laid in cement

mertar, rested on sandstone r‘ock.41 The site map of 909 shows the exact

38. Keeper's log book, July 26, 1901, RG 26, NA; drawing, "Big Sable
Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA.

39. Keeper's log book, July 15, 20, 23, and 25, 190i, RG 26, NA; map,
"Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA; annual reports of
the Eleventh Lighthouse District, 1899 and 1901, clipping file, RG 26, NA.

40. Annual reports of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, 1904 and 1905,
RG 26, NA; map, '"Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA.

41. Eleventh Lighthouse District, "Annual Report, 1906," clipping file,
RG 26, NA.
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IHlustration 25
Brick Cistern near Fog Signal House
1977
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position of the retaining wall. [t began at the southwest corner of the boat

landing and extended westward to a point just below the cister*n.42

Whether its collapse was due to faulty construction or to severe climatic
and sea conditions that no amount of expertise could overcome, by 1942 part
of the wall had crumbled into the lake.A'3 Repairs were made at this time.
In addition, the wall was extended westward about another 63 feet, bringing
its length to approximately 130 feet. The new extension turned off at a slight

angle, following the course of the bank Iine.4

The retaining wall did not last much longer after this, for today about
85 percent of the wall has collapsed and fallen into the lake. The collapse of
the wall has led to erosion that is undermining and threatening to destroy the
fog signal house. As an emergency precaution and until more permanent
measures can be taken, the park has built a double-tiered retaining wall of
wooden planks to support the soil holding the fog signal house (lllustrations
29 through 34).

42. Map, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan," June 9, 1909, RG 26, NA.

43. Photograph, captioned: "Break Wall & Recent Erosion In Front of
Fog Signal Bldg., Aug. 1942," in park files (lllustration 26).

44. Drawing, "Plot Plan," n.d. but ca. 1954, in park files. See photo-

graphs, ca. 1950s, in park files, showing where the new extension began and
where it ended (lllustrations 27 through 28).
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IHustration 26
Retaining Wall Photograph shows area of erosion.
Park Files--August 1942
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Hustration 27 and 28
Extended Sections of Relaining Wall
Park Files--ca. 1950s
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llustration 29
Old Section of Retaining Wall on the East
1977

Higstration 30

Fallen Section ef Relaining Wall

1977
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IHustration 31
Crumbling Section of Retaining Wall, Exposing Rock
1977

llfustration 32
Bottom of Retaining Wall, Anchored in Bedrock
1977




lustration 33
Fallen Sectlon of Retaining Wa'
19717

[lfustration 34
Double-Tiered Wooden Relaining
wall Under Feg Signal House
1977
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111. KEEPER'S AND ASSISTANT KEEPERS' FACILITIES

A. Attached Dwelling

wWhen the lighthouse was completed in 1874, the attached dwelling, or
what was then referred to as the keeper's dwelling, was also built. This
structure was originally a single dwelling for the keeper, but with the
passage of time and the appointment of an assistant keeper, both individuals

“and their families lived in the house in somewhat cramped quarters.

The dwelling was connected to the lighthouse tower by the passageway
described in the previous chapter. The passageway could be entered through
a doorway at the end of a hall on the first story of the dwelling and by way

of a doorway on the south side of the passageway itself.

The attached dwelling was a two-story structure with a basement and an
attic. The superstructure was made of red brick and the foundation
consisted of stone. According to architectural evidence recently uncovered,
the roof was originally made of cedar shingles, although in later years,
probably in 1909, the cedar shingles were replaced by red metal shingles.
The outside dimensions of the dwelling were 43 feet 9 inches by about 27
feet.

A blueprint drawing of the structure, obviously made at the time it was
being built, provides a thorough description of rooms, dimensions, and other

pertinent architectural details.’I

I.  Blueprint, "Keepers Dwelling for Big Sable Lt. Sta.," ca. 1874, in
park files. This drawing is in six sections: side elevation, west side
elevation, east side elevation, plan of foundation (celiar), plan of first story,
and plan of second story.
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The first story consisted of a kitchen, a living room, a bedroom, an oil
room, and a large woodshed throLJgh which one entered the building. Oil,
which was used for the lighthouse, was originally stored in the dwelling, as
close to the tower as possible. When the small brick oil house was
constructed in 895, this oil room was converted to other uses. The second
story consisted of four bedrooms. There was no second story area over the

large woodshed.

The lintels over windows and doors were made of curved stone. All

~windows. on the_first story were six.over sixXx_panes, and all had- -shutters.

On the second story, the two side windows were three over six panes, while
the rest were six over six panes. A chimney of brick protruded at the east
end of the building. In later years there were problems with the shutters,
and in all probability the severe winters made them unfit from time to time.
A 1904 photograph of the north side of the house shows several shutters
missing (illustration 35).2 in November 1903, the keeper noted in his log

book that a "storm window" (shutter?) was installed on the '"North Bed

Room. n3

While the storage of oil supplies originally may have been planned for
the so-called oil room when the dwelling was first constructed, by 1888 it was
decided to store these supplies in the cellar, an area that was divided into
two large sections. A door frame and door, with necessary fittings, were

provided for dividing the cellar into compartments so that supplies of oil and

2. Photograph, No. 26-LG-49-6B, RG 26, NA.

3. Keeper's log book, November 7, 1903, RG 26, NA. In addition to
the blueprint, "Keeper's Dwelling For Big Sable Lt. Sta.," ca. 1874, in park
filtes, photographs No. 26-LG-49-8, 1884, No. 26-L.G-49-5, 1884, and No.
26-1.G-48-7, all in RG 26, NA, provide excellent descriptions of the dwelling

‘only ten years after it was constructed (lllustration 36).
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IHustration 35
Attached Dwelling

Viewed from the North, 1904

(Photograph No. 26-1G-49-6B Record Group 26, National Archives)



Mustration 36
Attached Dwelling
Viewed Trom the Nectheast, 1884
{Phategraph Me. 26-LG-49-8, Recora Group 26, MNations! Archives)




provisions could be kept separate.4 It is not known to what use the old oil
room was converted after this change was made, but the cellar seemed to be a

more practical and safe place to store inflammable supplies.

The interior of the dwelling must have been painted rather simply; in all

probability most of it was painted white. There are numerous references in

the keeper’'s log book to the whitewashing of the kitchen.5

At _the_ basement level there were four small windows just above the

—_— —_— e e =

ground, two on the north side and two on the south. On the first floor
there were all double-hung windows. Four of these were on the north side,
one smaller than the rest being in the woodshed. There were three windows
on the south side, as well as a doorway leading to the woodshed that also led

to the main part of the house.

On the second story there were two windows on the east, overlooking
the sioping roof of the woodshed. There was one window on the northeast

corner and one on the southeast corner. Three windows faced west, over-

looking the passageway.

The attic story contained only one window, smaller than the rest, and it

was located on the west side.

Extensive alterations and additions were made to the lighthouse complex
in 1909. Among these changes was the construction of a new and separate
dwelling (to be discussed in a later section) for the keeper of the lighthouse.
The old attached dwelling, which was originally designed as a single dwelling,

was converted to a double dwelling for the use of two assistant keepers.

4. Eleventh Lighthouse District to Lighthouse Board, June 30, 1888,
letters of the Eleventh Lighthouse District, RG 26, NA.

5. Keeper's log book, October 14, 1899, and August 6, 190/, RG 26, NA.
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Other outbuildings were also constructed at this time, and still other facilities

were relocated.

The major changes made to the old dwelling consisted of the removal of
the woodshed. In its place was constructed a two-story extension on the
house that added four rooms, two to each level. To the east of this wing an
open porch was added that extended the full width of the house, on what was

then considered the rear.

~The major change occurring in the cellar was the addition of a cistern in
the northeast corner with a capacity to hold 700 gallons of water. This was
made of brick covered with plaster. Under the section where the old wood-

shed once stood, a stairway leading to the cellar was built.6

Changes were made on the first story to provide one complete apartment
for an assistant keeper. Where there originally had been four rooms and a
woodshed, there were now six rooms. There were two doorways and two
windows off the new porch, four windows overlooking the north side, and

four overlooking the south.7

The second story was also converted to six rooms. Two windows were
added at this level, one at the northwest corner and another at the southwest
corner. Finally, at the attic level, a smaller window was added at the east

end, or rear, of the house.

6. Drawing, "Au Sable Lt. Station, Mich., Modified Cellar Plan," No.
9948-M, ca. 1909, in park files (Appendix C-l).

7. Drawing, "Au Sable Lt. Station, Mich., Modified Dwelling, Plan of
st Story," No. 9954-H, ca. 1909, in park files (Appendix C-2).

8. Drawing, "Au Sable Lt. Station, Mich., Modified Dwelling, Plan of
2d Story," No. 9953-H, ca. 1909, in park files (Appendix C-3).
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During the alteration of the old dwelling, lintels to doorways and
windows were converted from brick to horizontal blocks. Stairways were also
added, and the new porch required a considerable amount of architectural
detail. The porch had four free-standing circular wooden columns and a
railing. The porch was reached by two stairways, each containing three

steps.

Photographs taken of the dwelling a few years after the alterations were

made provide some idea of what the structure looked like (lllustrations 37,

3§ andg 39). 10— e e e e

Between 1939 and 19350 the double dwelling underwent several changes to
the _inter‘ior'.11 Most important among these changes were the addition of
bathrooms on each floor. Other sanitary facilities also were added. The
kitchens on both floors were modernized, a hot-air heating system was.

installed, and the attic floor was insulated.

These were the last major changes made to the old dwelling before it was

last fived in, in 1958. Before it was shut down, however, the passageway

9. Ibid.; drawing, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Mich.," No. 9949-M, ca. 1909
(Appendix C-4); drawing, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Mich.," No. 9952-H, ca. 1909,
all in park files (Appendix C-5).

10. Photographs, June 1912, June 9, 1914, and June 14, 1920, all in park
files. |

iIl.  Drawing, "Au Sable, Michigan, Modification of Assistant Keepers
Dwelling (Two Baths added)," Approved February 14, 1939, No. 12589-S, in
park files (Appendix C-6); drawing, "Au Sable Light Station, Aflterations to
Dwelling Sanitary Facilities--Double Dwelling," May 17, 1949, No. 931-S (Sheet
2 of 3), in park files (Appendix C-7); drawing, "“Au Sable Light Station,
Alterations to Dwelling, Sanitary Facilities--Plot Plan & Details," May 17, 1949,
No. 931-S (sheet 3 of 3), in park files (Appendix C-8); "Specifications for
Installation of Sanitary Facilities at Au Sable Guard Light Station near Grand
Marais, Michigan," June (950, in park files.
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[Hustration 38

Remodaled Attached Dwelling Remodeled Attached Dwelling
Park Fllas-=June 1312 Park Flles--dune 9, 1914

IHustration 37



INustration 39
Remodeled Attached Dwelling
Park Files-=June 14, 1920
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feading to the lighthouse from the dwelling was blocked off complietely with
brick and plaster. The opening that was blocked off was an area 5 feet wide
by 8 feet 8 inches high.12 Henceforth, anyone entering the lighthouse would

have to pass through the door on the south side of the passageway.

Following this page are several photographs of the attached dwelling as

it appears today (lllustrations 40 through 44).

:
|
i
i
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' Jl"__“——“————B—.—— —New..Keeper's Dwellingh

The new keeper's dwelling, located just to the west of the lighthouse,
was constructed in 1909 at the same time that the old dwelling was remodeled.
Originally, the keeper and his one assistant both occupied the old dwelling.
With the appointment of a second assistant, the construction of a second
dwelling for the keeper, along with an enlargement of the old dwelling for two

assistants, became an absolute necessity.

The new dwelling consisted of vitrified red brick with a metal shingle
hip roof simifar to that of the old dwelling and some of the other structures
at Au Sable. The water table, lintels, sills, and porch copings were made of
cast concrete. The building contained seven spacious rooms, Iincluding a
bathroom, and there was a cellar under the whole house. Three bedrooms
and the bathroom were on the second floor, and a kitchen, dining room, and
parior were on the first floor. A cistern was built into the cellar. Small
porches with attractive overhangs were at the front (facing the lake) and the
rear of the house. An excellent plan of the structure, including a front
elevation, rear elevation, and side elevation, appears among the architectural

drawings at the par*k.13

2. Drawing, "Au Sable Light Sta., Lake Superior, Au Sable, Michigan,
Closing of Passageway," July 23, 1958, No. 1331-D, in park files.

13. Drawing, "Keeper's Dwelling," drawn by W. E. Beyer, December 30,
1908, in park files. -
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Mustration 40
Attached Dwelling, Viewed from Nerthwest
1877

Hliustration 41
Attached Dwelling, Viewed from Sotutheast
1977
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estration 42 [Muatration 43
Attached Dwelling Attached Dwelling
Viewsd from East Viewad from Lighthous= Balcony

1970 1977



Hlustration 44
Interior View of Passageway of Attached Dwelling
1977

u-‘---.---
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The building was 32 feet wide by 25 feet 8 inches deep, excluding the
iwo smali porches. The hip roof had two small dormers jutting out from the

allic on the east and west sides.

During its existence the exterior of the house did not undergo any
extensive changes. Photographs of the structure taken in 1912, 1920, and
recently depict the structure essentially as it was when first constructed

(fltustrations 45 through 49).14

——-In~ 1949—-the—attic "story was insulated ‘and "a hot-air heating system was
added. The kitchen was modernized and other sanitary facilities, similar to

those made on the old dwelling at this time, were also im:luded.15

- C. Privies

There are now two privies at Au Sable Light Station. One was probably
constructed when the attached dwelling was built in 1874; however, the
earliest evidence we have of the privy is in 1884. The second privy was

constructed in 1909, when the new keeper's dwelling was built.

A site plan of 1884, drawn to very small scale, depicts a tiny square

structure just to the east, or what was the rear, of the old dwelling.16 Two

4. Photographs, 1912 and June 14, 1920, both in park files. A drawing
titled "Keeper's Dwelling," ca. 1908, in park files, including a traverse
section and architectural details of the porches, provides additional data on
the construction of this building (Appendix C-9).

15. Drawing, "Au Sable Light Station, Alterations to Dwelling, Sanitary
Facilities, Single Dwelling," May 17, 1949, No. 931-S (Sheet | of 3), in park
files (Appendix C-10). For a detailed summary of the work at this time, see
"Specifications for Installation of Sanitary Facilities at Au Sable Coast Guard
Light Station Near Grand Marais, Michigan," June 1950, in park files.

6. Drawing, "Big Sable Light Station, Mich., Reservation Surveyed
Aug. II-13, 1884 by Geo. Y. Wisner," RG 26, NA.
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Iiustration 45
Keeper's Dwelling
Looking East
Park Files--1912
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Hiustration 46
Keeper's Dwelling
West and South Sides
1977

Mustration 47

R'-"t"“.}"?".? Dwell gl
East and North Sides
1977
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IHlustration 48
Keeper's Dwelling
North Side
1977

INustration 49
' Keeper's Dwelling
Viewed from Lighthouse Balcony
1977
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excellent photographs taken the same year provide conclusive evidence of this

. 1
iocation {(I{tustrations | and 37). /

in 1909 this old privy was described as consisting of red brick with a
red metal shingle roof, presumably the same materials that made up the old
dwelling. A distinguishing feature of this structure was its gabled roof,
which is quite evident in the (884 photogr‘aphs.18 (n {909 the privy was
moved to where it now stands, that is, to a point just south of the southeast

corner of the remodeled attached dwelling. A site plan drawn in 1909, with

——the notation "W~ C:" -(water closet)—-reveals the new-location of this privy .J

The privy stands opposite the metal circuiar oil house, which was also moved
in later vyears to where it now stands, and near the brick oil house
(Itlustrations 50, 51, and 52). There can be no doubt that the existing
structure is the same privy that was first constructed in 1874, with perhaps

some modifications made in later years to improve sanitary conditions.

The second privy, built in 1909 when the keeper's dwelling was
constructed, is approximately the same size as the first one. It also is made
of red brick and has a metal slate roof. Instead of having a gabled roof,
however, it has a hip roof. It is at the same location, that is, south of the
keeper's dwelling, as when it was first built (illustrations 53 and 54). It is

interesting to note that when this privy was constructed, the new dwelling

|7. Photographs, No. 26-1.G-49-5 and No. 26-1.G-49-8, RG 26, NA.

18. "Description of Buildings, Premises, Equipment, Etc., at Big Sable
Light-Station, Michigan," June 7, 1909, site file, RG 26, NA.

19. Drawing, "Big Sable Lt. Sta., Michigan, surveyed June 9, 1909, by
Ralph R. Tinkham,' site file, RG 26, NA. | -
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Mustration 50 [ustration 51
1874 Privy-—-Front 1874 Privy-—Rear
1977 1977




Illastration 52
Present Location of 1874 Privy
Privy is at left, brick oil house Is at center,and
metal oil house is at right.
1977
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fllustration 53 Hustration 54
1238 Privy 1905 Privy
Looking Southwest Looking Soulheast
1977 1977




was also built with a bathroom. Why both facilities were constructed at this

time is not clearly understood.

The two privies may have ceased to operate as privies when bathrooms

were added in the two dwellings in 1939.

D. Garage

The garage, which was constructed in 1954, was the last facility to be
built at the station. Its location has always been about 40 feet west and |10
feet south of the keeper's dwelling. It consists of a wood frame structure
with a flat roof made of asphalt sheeting. The foundation is on a concrete
footing, and a concrete floor slopes to the doors. With the exception of a hip
hood that extends over the front doors on the south side, the structure is 2i
feet by 2|1 feet. The overhang extends 2 feet beyond the doors. The
garage, which has two overhead doors, has room for two automobiles. There
are a total of four fixed windows, each with two panes. Two windows are

located at the rear of the garage and one each at the sides.20

The garage is of no unique architectural style, and today its condition is

poor (lllustrations 55 and 56).

l‘
J

20. Drawing, "Two Car Garage, Au Sable Lt. Sta., Mich.," No. }129-S,
February 12, 1954, in park files.
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Hlustration 55
Front of Garage
1977

IHustration 56
Rear of Garage
1977
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APPENDIX B

Description of Buildings, Premises, Equipment, Etc.
at Au Sable Light Station, Michigan,
June 7, 1909
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As the nation's principal conservation agency, the Department of the Interior
has basic responsibilities to protect and conserve our land and water, energy
and minerals, fish and wildlife, and parks and recreation areas, and to .
ensure the wise use of all these resources. The department also has major
responsibility for American Indian reservation communities and for people

who live in island territories under U.S. administration.

Publication services were provided by the graphics and editorial staffs of %he
Denver Service Center. NPS 1306
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